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AVIATION REGULATORY UPDATE

SENATE TAX BILL COULD IMPACT INTERNATIONAL AIRLINES
On November 14, 2017, the U.S. Senate Committee on Finance convened a markup of the “Tax Cuts and Jobs Act” which is the Senate’s version of tax reform legislation.  Included in the Senate’s tax reform legislation is a provision that would eliminate an income tax exemption derived by certain foreign corporations engaged in the international operation of aircraft by adding additional requirements for the tax exemption to apply.  Specifically, the proposal calls for airlines headquartered in foreign countries to pay U.S. corporate income taxes if: (i) the carrier’s home country does not have an income tax treaty with the United States; and (ii) the carrier’s country of origin has fewer than two arrivals and departures, per week, operated by major U.S. airlines.  Jurisdictions impacted include: the British Virgin Islands, Cabo Verde, Ethiopia, Fiji, French Polynesia, Jordan, Kuwait, Malaysia, Qatar, Samoa, Saudi Arabia, Serbia, Suriname and the United Arab Emirates.  

REMINDER: DEADLINE TO RESPOND TO DOT REGULATORY REVIEW IS DECEMBER 1

The deadline for submitting comments to DOT in response to its October 2, 2017 “Notification of Regulatory Review” proceeding is December 1, 2017.  This is an important initiative as it affords U.S. and international airlines the opportunity to address some of the rules and regulations that have been enacted in the last ten or so years by DOT.  The Trump Administration is dedicated to reducing unnecessary rules and regulations and is looking for information from the industry on the cost and burdensomeness of its rules so that it can properly assess the impact and efficiency of the rules.  We have prepared a template comment which we are happy to adapt and submit on your behalf if you are interested.

OFAC IMPLEMENTS NEW RESTRICTIONS ON CUBA TRAVEL AND BUSINESS

On November 9, 2017, the U.S. Department of Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC) amended the Cuban Asset Control Regulations (CACR).  The focus of the amendments is on restricting individual travel to Cuba and prohibiting transactions with certain Cuban military, intelligence, or security services.

Under the new regulations, travel to Cuba for “People to People Travel” and “Educational Travel” must be conducted under the auspices of a sponsoring organization and travelers must be accompanied by a representative of that sponsoring organization.  Additionally, travelers to Cuba for “Support of the Cuban People” must now engage in a full-time schedule of activities “that result in meaningful interaction with individuals in Cuba and that enhance contact with the Cuban people, support civil society in Cuba, or promote the Cuban people’s independence from Cuban authorities.”

Also effective November 9, 2017, persons subject to U.S. jurisdiction will prohibited from engaging in transactions with certain Cuban military, intelligence, or security services identified on the State Department’s List of Restricted Entities and Sub-entities Associated with Cuba (“Restricted List”).  This list can be found at: https://www.state.gov/e/eb/tfs/spi/cuba/cubarestrictedlist/275331.htm.  Notably, it appears that this restriction will not apply to “transactions concerning air and sea operations” that “support permissible travel.”  Additionally, these restrictions will not apply to any transactions related to commercial engagements that involve direct financial transactions with an entity on the Restricted List, provided those commercial engagements were in place prior to the date that the entity was added to the Restricted List.  

ALL NIPPON AND EVA FILE PETITION TO U.S. SUPREME COURT

On October 17, 2017, All Nippon Airways and EVA Airways filed a petition for a writ of certiorari to the U.S. Supreme Court related to the filed-rate doctrine.  As background, the filed-rate doctrine is a common law rule which provides that any entity that is required to file tariffs governing the rates, terms, and conditions of service must adhere strictly to those terms. The principle forbids a regulated entity from charging a rate other than the one on file with the appropriate federal regulatory authority.  All Nippon is attempting to defend against “a class comprised of all ‘persons and entities that purchased passenger air transportation’ for travel” between the United States and Asia between January 1, 2000 and the present.  The plaintiffs are seeking treble damages for an alleged conspiracy among the defendant airlines to fix the price of international passenger fares and fuel surcharges on transpacific flights in violation of Section l of the Sherman Act.

The petition addresses two issues.  First, whether the filed-rate doctrine still applies where rates are filed with a federal agency pursuant to a statutory regulatory scheme or whether it no longer applies to such rates if a court finds the agency lacks sufficient “practical ability” to regulate those rates.  The petition notes that there is a Circuit split on this issue.  And second, whether, and to what extent, the filed-rate doctrine applies where a federal agency retains regulatory authority over rates but chooses to exercise that authority by establishing a regulatory system, which it periodically revisits and revises, that does not require each rate to be literally filed with the agency.

The U.S. Supreme Court will review the petition.  However, the Court generally grants only 3-5% of petitions for a writ of certiorari during any given Term so it is uncertain whether this case will ultimately be decided.

DOT DROPS PROHIBITION ON U.S.-SUDAN CARGO SERVICE

Going back as far as 1998, cargo service between the United States and Sudan has been banned.  DOT, through Order 98-2-5, specifically prohibited any air carrier or foreign air carrier from engaging in air transportation between the United States and Sudan using aircraft of Sudanese registry; prohibited the issuance in the United States of any air waybill that includes a stop in Sudan, regardless of whether the flight in question serves the United States; and forbid U.S. air carriers from selling any transportation of cargo to or from Sudan anywhere in the world.  Sudan,  has taken recent and positive action to address many of the U.S. government’s concerns that have persisted since the late 1990s.  

As a result, DOT, on November 20, 2017, issued Order 2017-11-15 “Order Revoking Order 98-2-5.” The effect of DOT’s action is to immediately allow a broad range of cargo operations between the United States and Sudan including foreign air transportation by Sudanese carriers, the issuance of air waybills in the United States that include a stop in Sudan, and the sale by U.S. carriers of cargo transportation between Sudan to points in third countries.  We note that DOT’s Order does not affect any regulatory restrictions or requirements that may be maintained by other agencies, including the Departments of State, Treasury, Commerce, and Homeland Security.

PORT AUTHORITY OF NEW YORK AND NEW JERSEY TO CHARGE ADDITIONAL SECURITY FEE AT JFK

All companies performing security guard services at John F. Kennedy International Airport (JFK) will be required to enter into a new Security Guard Privilege Permit with the Port Authority that will require the company to obtain a license under New York State General Business Law (GBL) and its security guards will have to obtain a license under New York State GBL. The Security Guard Privilege Permit will also require the payment of a five percent fee on gross receipts to the Port Authority. Finally, all security guards will be required to attend and successfully complete a 4-hour training program provided by the Port Authority.  The new Security Guard Privilege Permit is expected to become effective on January 1, 2018.

NEW YORK ATTORNEY GENERAL PROPOSES LAW TO PROTECT CUSTOMER DATA

New York Attorney General Eric Schneiderman has proposed new legislation, called the SHIELD Act, which would require companies to protect the “sensitive data” of New Yorkers in their possession regardless of whether that company does business within the state. The SHIELD Act would also “expand the types of data that trigger reporting requirements to include username and password combinations, biometric data, and HIPAA covered health data.” Mr. Schneiderman stated that the proposed legislation is in response to several recent data breaches that have affected the security of millions of Americans.  “In 2016 alone”, according to a press release from the state, “the [New York] Attorney General’s office received a record 1,300 data breach notifications, representing a 60 percent increase over the previous year.” The SHIELD Act has not yet been voted on by either house of New York’s legislature.  It is anticipated that other states will follow suit with their own versions of New York’s proposed law in the near future.

DYNAMIC INTERNATIONAL AIRWAYS, LLC FINED BY DOT FOR TARMAC DELAY VIOLATION

DOT’s enforcement office recently fined Dynamic International Airways, LLC for allegedly violating 14 CFR Part 259 and 49 USC §§ 41712 and 42301. Specifically, DOT alleged that Dynamic failed to adhere to the assurance in its contingency plan for lengthy tarmac delays to provide adequate food and water no later than two hours after the aircraft touches down if the aircraft remains on the tarmac. DOT’s November 2017 consent order directed Dynamic to cease and desist from future similar violations of 14 CFR Part 259 and 49 USC §§ 41712 and 42301, and assessed a $15,000 civil penalty against the airline.   

Specifically, an investigation by DOT’s Office of Aviation Enforcement and Proceedings revealed that on December 21, 2016, an XTRA Airways aircraft flying from Simón Bolívar International Airport to JFK experienced a lengthy tarmac delay during a technical stop at MIA. Dynamic originally marketed the flight as a direct sales public charter and planned to operate it as Dynamic flight 2D 412 on December 19, 2016. However, when Dynamic was unable to operate the flight due to mechanical difficulty, it turned to XTRA to operate the flight on its behalf pursuant to an ACMI (i.e. wetlease) agreement. 

Due to U.S. Customs and Border Protection restrictions at MIA, passengers were unable to deplane for the duration of the delay, which lasted over three hours, while the aircraft remained parked at the gate. Both Dynamic and XTRA confirmed that the passengers on the XTRA aircraft were not provided food or water before the tarmac delay exceeded two hours. XTRA stated that it requested food and water from Dynamic personnel at MIA, but that these requests were unsuccessful.  DOT determined that although XTRA aircraft and crew operated the flight, Dynamic, as the charterer and marketing carrier, remained obligated to adhere to the terms of its tarmac delay contingency plan and ensure that passengers received adequate food and water during the tarmac delay. Dynamic’s failure to do so violated 14 CFR 259.4(b)(3), 14 CFR 259.4(b)(7), and was deemed to be an unfair and deceptive trade practice.

GEM AIR RECEIVES $72,400 PROPOSED FAA FINE

On November 17, 2017, the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) proposed a $72,400 civil penalty against Gem Air for allegedly operating three aircraft when required inspections were overdue.  Gem Air is a Part 135 operator from Salmon, Idaho.

The inspections in question are mandated by FAA airworthiness directives. The FAA alleges that Gem Air:

· Operated a Cessna T206H for 8.7 hours in August 2016 when a periodic inspection of a fuel-injector line was overdue. 

· Operated a Quest Kodiak 100 for 24.2 hours in January and February 2017 when a periodic inspection of an elevator control mechanism was overdue. 

· Operated a Piper PA-31-350 for 246.1 hours between December 2015 and March 2017 when a periodic inspection of certain engine cowling components was overdue for one engine; and operated the aircraft for 198.8 hours between January 2016 and March 2017 when the inspection was overdue for the other engine. 

· Operated the Piper PA-31-350 for 246.1 hours between December 2015 and March 2017 when periodic inspections of the engine exhaust systems were overdue. 

The FAA also alleges Gem Air failed to keep a record of the current status of applicable airworthiness directives for the Piper PA-31-350 in question.  Gem Air has asked to meet with the FAA to discuss the case and no final determination on the fine has been made.
This Aviation Regulatory Update is intended to keep readers current on matters affecting the industry, and is not intended to be legal advice.  If you have any questions, please contact Evelyn Sahr at esahr@eckertseamans.com or 202-659-6622; Drew Derco at dderco@eckertseamans.com or 202-659-6665.
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